
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 25 Regular Council Meeting Reconvened from 
March 22, 2021\2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

 Click link to join meeting:  https://zoom.us/j/94388250329 Meeting ID: 943 8825 0329 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Jamie Ross 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor John Snell 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 

This meeting will reconvene on Thursday, March 25, 2021 at 7:00 pm  
at Item 5.3 of this agenda. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
2.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 22, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, March 22, 2021 be approved 

as circulated. 
3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
3.1 Regular Council Meeting, March 8, 2021 
 Recommendation: 
 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held March 8, 2021 be 

adopted. 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
 No items. 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VIA ZOOM 
Reconvened from March 22, 2021 

to March 25, 2021 at 7:00 pm 
 

https://zoom.us/j/94388250329


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 25 Regular Council Meeting Reconvened from 
March 22, 2021\2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.docx 

5. REPORTS 
5.1 Richard White, RWPAS, Planning Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 
 regarding Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment — UBCM 
 Housing Needs Report 
 Recommendation: 
 That Staff and the Village Planning Consultants be directed to prepare a          
 Belcarra Housing Needs Assessment using the UBCM grant, in co-operation         
 with the Villages of Lions Bay and Anmore.  
 
5.2 Dan Watson, Pooni Group, Planning Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 

regarding Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) 
Policy update 

 Recommendation: 
a) That the Village of Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 210 be amended as 
 outlined in this report.   
b) That the following bylaw be given First and Second Reading, and be referred 
 to Public Hearing:  

• Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw                
No. 580, 2021; and 

c) That the following bylaws be given First and Second Readings: 
• Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment 

Bylaw No. 581, 2021; 
• Village of Belcarra Business License Bylaw No. 227, 1995, Amendment 

Bylaw No. 582, 2021. 
d) That Staff be directed to report back on the implementation of Village of 
 Belcarra Corporate Policy No. 210 one year after the adoption of Village       
 of  Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021,  
 if adopted. 
 
 
 

 March 22, 2021 – The meeting was adjourned. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 25 Regular Council Meeting Reconvened from 
March 22, 2021\2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.docx 

 
 March 25, 2021 – The meeting will reconvene at Item 5.3 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Mayor Ross will call the meeting to order. 

5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 Draft          
 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
 Recommendation:  

a) That the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update report dated March 22, 2021 
 be received for information; and 
b) That a ___% increase in property taxes, a ____% increase in water user rates, 
 and a  ____% in WARD user rates be reflected in the Village 2021 budget to 
 be brought forward for public consultation; and 
c) That the Village 2021 – 2025 Draft Financial Plan (Plan) be forwarded to the 
 April 12,  2021 regular Council meeting for public comment / feedback, with the 
 version of the Plan shown in this report being presented to the public as is or 
 with the following amendments:   

5.4 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding the 
2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies 
Recommendation: 

 That “2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies” report dated 
 March 22, 2021, from the Financial Consultant, be received for information. 

5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding 
 Monitored Fire Alarms 
 Recommendation:  
 That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated March 22, 2021, from the Financial 
 Consultant, be received for information.  

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 
7. BYLAWS 
7.1 Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021   
 Recommendation: 
 That the “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021” be adopted. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 
Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.15 be received. 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 25 Regular Council Meeting Reconvened from 
March 22, 2021\2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.docx 

ACTION ITEMS 
 No items. 
 INFORMATION ITEMS 
8.1 Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of Williams Lake, letter dated February 18, 2021 to 
 Premier John Horgan, Hon. Adrian Dix, Minister of Health and Dr. Bonnie Henry, 
 Provincial Health Officer, regarding Vaccine Distribution 
8.2 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 4, 2021 
 regarding Local Government Election Candidates: Access to Multifamily 
 Dwellings during the Campaign Period (full report available at the Village office) 
8.3 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letter dated March 4, 2021 
 regarding Single-Use Item Regional Regulation (full report available at the Village 
 office) 
8.4 Gina Farid, Administrative Assistant, Office of Nelly Shin, MP, email dated    
 March 4, 2021regarding Canada Healthy Communities Initiative  
8.5 Jonathan Cote, Mayor, City of New Westminster, letters dated March 5, 2021 to 
 Honourable Harry Bains, Minister of Labour and Honourable Melanie Mark, 
 Minister of Tourism, Arts, Culture & Sport regarding Support for Laid-off Hotel & 
 Tourism Industry Workers 
8.6 Christine Fraser, Mayor, Township of Spallumcheen, letter dated March 5, 2021 
 to Honourable Patty Hajdu regarding Support for 988 Crisis Line  
8.7 Dr. Victoria Lee, President & Chief Executive Officer, Fraser Health Authority, 
 letter dated March 8, 2021 regarding COVID-19 Immunization Clinics for Belcarra 
8.8 Lisa Helps, Mayor, City of Victoria, letter dated March 10, 2021 regarding 
 Endorsement of the Help Cities Lead Campaign 
8.9  Walt Cobb, Mayor, City of Williams Lake, letter dated March 11, 2021 to     
 Premier John Hogan regarding Call for Public Inquiry: Stronger Sentencing for 
 Prolific & Repeat Offenders 
8.10 Kate Barchard, Corporate Officer, City of Pitt Meadows, letter dated March 11, 2021
 regarding Fair Taxation from Railway Operations & Industrial Parks  
8.11 Jan Simpson, National President, Canadian Union of Postal Workers, letter dated 
 March 2021 regarding Request for Support for Delivering Community Power 
8.12 Colleen MacDonald, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 7, 2021 regarding 
 Recording of Mikael Colville-Anderson Now Available (full report available at 
 the Village office) 
8.13 Sherry Chisholm, Belcarra Resident, letter dated March 9, 2021 regarding The 
 Concerned Taxpayer 
8.14 Julie Chamberlain, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 10, 2021 regarding 
 Abuse of Belcarra Mayor and Council 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  March 25, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 25 Regular Council Meeting Reconvened from 
March 22, 2021\2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.docx 

8.15 Brian Hirsch, Belcarra Resident, email dated March 17, 2021 regarding 
 Resubmission: Clarification & Comments on Corporate Policy 210 regarding  
 STRA & B&B  

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 
 Recommendation  

That the March 22, 2021 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the 
Community Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to 
the public if the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of 
the following: 

(a) Personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is 
being considered for a position as an officer, employee or agent of the 
municipality or another position appointed by the municipality; 

(c)  labour relations or other employee relations; 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Recommendation: 
 That the March 25, 2021 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: March 22, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
 
 
Recommendations 
That the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update report dated March 22, 2021 be received for 
information; 
 
That a ___% increase in property taxes, a ____% increase in water user rates, and a ____% in WARD 
user rates be reflected in the Village’s 2021 budget to be brought forward for public consultation; and 
 
That the Village’s 2021 – 2025 Draft Financial Plan (Plan) be forwarded to the April 12th, 2021 regular 
Council meeting for public comment/feedback, with the version of the Plan shown in this report as 
Appendix “E” (pages 1 – 28), being presented to the public as is or with the following amendments…. 
 
Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to provide further information in regards to the Village of Belcarra Draft 
2021 – 2025 Financial Plan which was introduced on March 8, 2021, and to seek Council direction in 
terms of a moving forward with a Draft Financial Plan that can be brought forward for public 
consultation purposes. 

Background 
At the March 8, 2021 Council meeting Council requested further information in regards to some of the 
2021 budget estimates. Attached labeled Appendices “A” (3 pages), “B” (1 page) and “C” (1 page) 
provide explanations for the major 2021 – 2020 budget variances and the comparative 2020 actual 
results, for the General Operating Fund, the Water Operating Fund and the WARD Operating Fund, 
respectively. 
Of note are two budget changes that have occurred since the initial budget presentation on March 8th, 
as follows: 

• Provision for Housing Needs Assessment Study and related grant ($15,000 project expense 
funded entirely from grant) (see Appendix “E” page 3) has been provided for in 2021; and 

• Inclusion of $3,800 for road sweeping costs in each year with 70% being budgeted in MRN, 
and thus recoverable from TransLink funding, and 30% in the non-MRN roads budget. 

 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.3



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

Report 
Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests (Appendix “D”) 
The items shown in attached Appendix “D” were previously presented for budget discussion and are 
now reattached for Council’s direction in terms of which items should be supported in regards to 
budget funding.  
 
Water Debt 
Information was also requested in regards to the first opportunity for paying out the water debt. The 
first 10-year payout opportunity on the Village water debt occurs in October of 2022 and every 5 years 
thereafter (again in 2027 for example). The payout amount in 2022 is $3.16 million and this 
opportunity is now shown on the water debt graph in Appendix “E” (see page 18 in Appendix). 
 
Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan (Appendix “E” which includes pages 1 – 28) (summary is on page 2) 
Council direction is requested in terms of any further budget information required and / or the 
provisional financial plan that should be brought forward to the public for consultation purposes. The 
tax and user rate increases currently built into the plan are shown in the table below.  For each 1% 
increase in property taxes additional revenue of $8,500 is generated and for each 1% increase in water 
and WARD user rates, $2,700 and $1,200 respectively, are generated.   

 

Summary of Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Tax & User Rate Increases with 2020 
Budget Comparisons 

Description 
2020 

Budget 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Property tax 
increases 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Water rate 
increases 
(exclusive of 
parcel tax) 

10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate 
increases 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

 
 
Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home 
The overall increase in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in 
Belcarra, based on various scenarios, is shown below.  
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 3 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 4 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

Public Consultation, Budget Amendments & Timeframe for Bylaws 
The intent is to bring forward the latest version of the financial plan document as shown in Appendix 
“E” (pages 1- 28), or as amended by Council, for public comment/consultation at the April 12th, 2021 
regular meeting of Council. If Council would like to present other information or prefers another 
format for public consultation they should advise. Council should provide direction as to any budget 
amendments that they would like to include in the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan (see Appendix 
“E”) to be presented to the public. 
As noted previously the Village needs to adopt a 5-year 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw and a 
related Tax Rates bylaw by May 10, 2021. After March 22, 2021 there are only three (3) regular 
Council meetings scheduled prior to the May 15th legislative deadline, which means should the bylaws 
be adopted over three meetings or more the bylaws would have to be considered at a special meeting 
or meetings of Council. 
   
Summary 
We respectfully request Council’s direction in terms of the Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
(Appendix “E” pages 1 – 28) in terms of a budget / plan which can be brought forward for public 
consultation purposes and so that the legislative timelines can be met for the adoption of the Village 
financial plan and tax rates bylaws.  
 
Attachments: 

Appendix “A” – General Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results 
Appendix “B” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results 
Appendix “C” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results 
Appendix "D" – 2021 Budget Items Received for Discussion Purposes 
Appendix “E” – Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan (pages 1 – 28) 
 
 
 
 

 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 5 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 6 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 7 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 8 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update 
March 22, 2021 
Page 9 of 9 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.docx 

 
 

 



Description Cost Notes

Mulch for road to Farrer Cove $838.00
This is a private road and consideration should be given to the fact that there are other private roads in 
Belcarra who do not receive this benefit

Periodic lit entrance sign displays Various options

Relatively short lifetime of past Dewalt integrated battery-inverter units.  If public works sees value in 
a small portable generator dedicated about 12 days a year to displays - great.  If not the Dewalt or 
equivalent purchases may be the best interim approach. 

Option 1 : A metered AC power drop at the village’s entrance sign.     While convenient I suspect this 
option would cost us several $1000s minimum initially.   We would then have a permanent monthly 
fee to pay to B.C. Hydro.    Unless we felt ongoing evening spotlights on our sign was worth the 
ongoing expenditure I don’t think this makes sense.    If AC power were incidentally available due to 
some other priority I would welcome the service.  Otherwise I don’t see a strong case for a dedicated 
outlet.

Cost est. $2,000-$4,000 with ongoing monthly fees   Maintenance very limited

Option 2 - Go Off Grid  - Install a standalone solar supply system with solar panels on the roof and a 
pair of deep cycle batteries installed under the roof with the necessary controllers and inverter to power 
displays. 

Cost: $800 -$1500 in basic supplies.  Several hours of installation.  Ongoing maintenance - 15-20 year 
lifespan - no monthly fees )

Option 3 - A small portable gas powered generator to be added to public works and placed at the sign 
site only when the display needs power

Cost:  $1100  pretax ( for Honda’s  “Ultra-Quiet 1000i “ ) plus fuel.  Maintenance should be limited - 
lifetime 15-20 years  - no monthly fees )

Please be advised that at a Regular meeting of Belcarra Council held September 28, 2020, the 
following motion was passed: 

  “That a Council representative be appointed as a liaison to Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR); 
and             
 That the Coquitlam Search & Rescue (SAR) request for a donation be considered in 2021 Budget 
discussions.”

Heritage Woods Secondary School 
request for assistance - referred from 
Feb. 22, 2021 Council Agenda To be Determined

For hosting Commencement Celebration on June 16, 2021. Tara McKinley & Pauline Nielsen, Grad 
2021 Co-Chairs, Heritage Woods Secondary School, letter received February 15, 2021 regarding 2021 
Commencement Celebration 

Communities Embracing Restorative 
Action (CERA) Society grant 
application $353.00

Gurinder Mann, Executive Director, Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society, 
letter dated December 27, 2020 regarding a Request for a Community Grant for the Community Youth 
Justice Program.  The Community Youth Justice Program (CYJP) is a community based initiative of 
Communities Embracing Restorative Action (CERA) Society. CERA is a non-profit registered charity 
incorporated in British Columbia in April 1999. The purpose of the CYJP is to apply the principles of 
restorative justice in supporting youth and strengthening communities by addressing youth crime in 
meaningful and durable ways.

Softball BC - referred from Feb. 22, 
2021 Council Agenda To be Determined

Doug Allin, Head Coach Men’s, Mark Dunlop, Head Coach Women’s & Rick Benson, 
Executive Director, Softball BC, letter received January 8, 2021 regarding Request for 
COVID Relief Funding for Male & Female Softball Athletes at the 2022 Canada Summer 
Games

Crossroads Hospice Society - referred 
from Feb. 22, 2021 Council Agenda To be Determined

Janice Boyle, Executive Director, Crossroads Hospice Society, letter received December 28, 
2020 regarding a Request for a Contribution

Habitat for Humanity Greater 
Vancouver To be Determined Request for support via email

Appendix "D" - 2021 Budget Items Received for Discussion Purposes

Grant for Coquitlam Search & Rescue To be Determined



 

                                                                                                                                        

 

Village of Belcarra 
Appendix “E” 

Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan 
(presented March 22, 2021) 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 1 
 

Table of Contents     
  

   
Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

Introduction & Overview ........................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

General Operating Fund ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Water Operating Fund ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Capital Plan ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Reserves & Surpluses .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Property Taxes & User Fees ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

General Operating Fund Details ........................................................................................................................................................... 11 

Water Operating Fund Details .............................................................................................................................................................. 15 

Water Fund Debt ................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details ...................................................................................................................... 19 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details ................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances .................................................................................................................................................. 24 

Comparative Benchmarks .................................................................................................................................................................... 25 

 
 
 
 



 

 2 
 

Summary 
The Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan includes a 5% property tax increase in 2021, and 5% per year for each of the four (4) years thereafter. In addition, all water 
and WARD user rate increases have been set at 10% per annum in each year of the plan. The planned rate increases, the regular operating revenues and 
expenses and the resulting reserve/surplus transfers, together with the planned capital expenditures under the plan are as follows:  

Summary of Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan with 2020 Budget Comparisons 

Description 
2020 

Budget 

Draft 
2021 

Budget 
2022 
Plan 

2023 
Plan 

2024 
Plan 

2025 
Plan 

Property tax increases 15% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $1,373,000 $1,474,000 $1,545,000 $1,621,000 $1,688,000 $1,757,000 

General Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $1,112,000 $1,155,000 $1,107,000 $1,069,000 $1,087,000 $1,105,000 
General Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus (includes 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds) $318,000 $376,000 $498,000 $612,000 $664,000 $715,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $282,000 $318,000 $352,000 $390,000 $432,000 $475,000 

Water Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $219,000 $292,000 $331,000 $388,000 $373,000 $375,000 
Water Operating Fund Transfers to Reserves & Surplus  $64,000 $26,000 $20,000 $1,000 $58,000 $100,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Revenues  $123,000 $135,000 $149,000 $163,000 $180,000 $197,000 

WARD Operating Fund – Regular Operating Expenses $110,000 $148,000 $158,000 $177,000 $181,000 $185,000 
WARD Operating Fund Transfers to (from) Reserves & Surplus $13,000 $(13,000) $(10,000) $(13,000) $(1,000) $12,000 

Total Projected Reserve & Surplus Transfers $395,000 $389,000 $508,000 $600,000 $721,000 $827,000 

Planned Capital Expenditures $4,259,000 $426,000 $404,000 $278,000 $264,000 $407,000 
   *Numbers based on the current draft financial plan. Numbers are rounded for presentation purposes.  



 

 3 
 

Introduction & Overview 
Staff and the Village’s Financial Consultant are pleased to present the 
Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan which includes the Draft 2021 
Budget. This document provides summary and detailed financial information 
for the Village three (3) operating funds (the General Operating Fund, the 
Water Operating Fund and the Waste & Recycle Depot Operating Fund) and 
for the Village’s 5-year capital spending program and its various reserve and 
surplus accounts. In addition, information is provided on key benchmark 
information with other comparable jurisdictions.    

Based on this information Council can decide on any further budget changes 
and related proposed property tax and user rate increases which will be 
presented to the public for feedback.  

The financial information presented purposely differentiates between regular 
and extraordinary (includes one-time, non-reoccurring and/ or designated 
items) operating expenses and revenues so that a clearer picture of the true 
cost of funding core operations is visible.   

General Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 General Operating Fund Budget includes a property tax 
increase of 5% with approximately $318,000 being available for transfers to 
reserves and surplus accounts ($375,000 including gas tax funds).  The 2021 
Draft Operating Fund Budget includes two major projects: the OCP Review & 
Update ($100,000 - funded from Community Works Gas Tax Funds) and the 
Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan ($75,000 – funded from 
Community Works Gas Tax Funds and a grant). In addition, a Community 
Wildfire Protection Plan is budgeted for at $25,000 and a Housing Needs 
Assessment Study at $15,000, both funded entirely from grants.  

 

 

 

 



 

 4 
 

 

 

 



 

 5 
 

 



 

 6 
 

Water Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 Water Operating Fund Budget includes a water rate increase 
of 10%, with approximately $26,000 being available for transfers to reserves 
and surplus accounts.   

 

 

 



 

 7 
 

Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund 

The Draft 2021 WARD Operating Fund Budget includes a provisional rate 
increase of 10% with approximately $14,000 being transferred from WARD 
surplus to balance the budget.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 8 
 

  

Capital Plan 

A detailed 5-year capital plan is provided in this document of which a 
summary follows.  

The draft 5-year capital plan in WARD provides for the replacement of 
essential equipment such as the compactor, containers, motors and bin lids. 
The draft 5-year capital plan in Water focuses on a universal water meter 
program, leak detection and engineering for a new water system.  

The major capital projects in the General Fund include generators, a new roof 
for the public works building, security systems, vehicle replacements, road 
rehabilitation and improvements (for the non-MRN and MRN road), upkeep 
of the storm sewer system, trail improvements and a fence for the multi-use 
court.   

The draft capital plan over the 5 years (2021 – 2025 totals approximately $1.8 
million.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 9 
 

Reserves & Surpluses 

The Village’s reserve and surplus balances are projected to grow from $1.6 
million to $3.2million over the next 5 years (see graph below) based on the 
Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan including the planned reserve transfer and 
capital spending.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 10 
 

 

Property Taxes & User Fees 
 

The Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan reflects annual increases in 
water and WARD user fees of 10% to provide for the increased cost of 
providing these services and to built up reserves for important future 
infrastructure projects. In addition, the Plan provides for a 5% increase in 
property taxes for 2021 and 5% per annum thereafter. The property tax and 
user rate increases in the Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan are summarized as 
follows. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 11 
 

 

General Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft General Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft General Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Provisional general property tax increase of 5%. 
 $1.47 million of regular operating revenues and $1.15 million of 

regular operating expenses (includes $133,000 of revenue and 
expense for Major Road Network). 

 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 
(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 50% phased in 
level for 2021.  

 Special project funding for OCP Review & Update (budget of 
$100,000), Asset Management Plan/Long-Term Financial Plan 
(budget of $75,000), Community Wildfire Protection Plan (budget of 
$25,000) and Housing Needs Assessment Study ($15,000) with a 
combination of reserve and grant funding. 

 $375,000 of funds budgeted for transfer to reserves and surplus 
(includes $57,000 to the Community Gas Tax Reserve Fund). 
 

 

 Ongoing provisional annual general property increases of 5%.  
 Allocation of centralized support costs to the Major Road Network 

(MRN) and the Water and WARD operating funds at 75% phased in 
level for 2021 and 100% thereafter.  

 Reserve and surplus transfers increasing each year to the $715,000 
level in 2025 (includes $63,000 to the Community Works Gas Tax 
Fund). 
 

 In 2021 every 1% increase in General Property Taxes will generate $8,500 of additional revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 12 
 

 

 



 

 13 
 

 

 



 

 14 
 

 



 

 15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Operating Fund Details 

2021 Draft Water Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft Water Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 10% increase in water user rates for those connected to the water system 
and for those not connected to the water system. 

 $318,000 of regular operating revenues and $292,000 of regular 
operating expenses. 

 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to Water operating 
fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  

 Budgeted increase in water usage and budgeted cost increases for the 
purchase of water from the Greater Vancouver Water District (GVWD) 
and from the District of North Vancouver (for water distribution). These 
factors together are increasing by 35%.  

 $26,000 of contributions or transfers to reserves and surplus.  
 

 Ongoing 10% increases in water user rates. 
 Increased transfers to water reserves and surplus after full allocation of 

centralized support costs and increased water usage/ 
purchase/distribution costs are offset by annual rate increases. 

 $100,000 available for transfer to reserve and surplus in 2025.  

 In 2021 every 1% increase in Water User Rates would generate $2,700 of additional revenue 



 

 16 
 

 

 



 

 17 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 18 
 

Water Fund Debt 
 

 



 

 19 
 

 

 Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details  
 

2021 Draft WARD Operating Fund Budget Highlights 2022 – 2025 Draft WARD Operating Fund Financial Plan Highlights 

 Increase in WARD user rates of 10%. 
 $135,000 of regular operating revenues and $148,000 of regular 

operating expenses. 
 Allocation of centralized support costs charged to WARD 

operating fund at 50% phased in level for 2021.  
 Large increase (39%) in collection, hauling and disposal costs from the 

contractor are negatively affecting the WARD operating fund.  
 Contribution from WARD surplus of $14,000 required in 2021. 

 

 Annual WARD user rate increases of 10%. 
 Transfer for WARD surplus required in 2022 to 2024 based on new 

allocation of centralized support costs and increased hauling/disposal 
costs, which will be offset by annual rate increases in subsequent years. 

 $12,000 available for transfer to surplus in 2025. 

In 2021 every 1% increase in WARD User Rates would generate $1,200 of additional revenue 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 20 
 

 



 

 21 
 

5 - Year Capital Plan Details 

2021 Capital Highlights 2022 – 2025 Capital Highlights 

 $426,000 of capital projects planned for. 
 $57,000 of funding from TransLink for Bedwell Bay Road Recessed 

Pavement Markers (Cats Eyes) project and Bedwell Bay Road Safety 
Barrier Project.  

 Funding to start universal water metering project.  
 $155,000 of capital spending for Non-MRN road improvements.  

 

 

 Approximately 1.35 million of capital spending for 2022 – 2025 with 
continuation of universal water metering planned for as well as major 
vehicle replacements and road improvements.   

 

 



 

 22 
 

 

 



 

 23 
 

 



 

 24 
 

Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances 

 



 

 25 
 

 

Comparative Benchmarks 
The comparisons or benchmarks presented here are for discussion purposes 
during budget deliberations. When viewing the data, it is important to 
remember that each community is unique in terms of its assessment base, its 
geography, its budgetary demands, etc. - as such no two (2) communities are 
exacting alike. 

However, when looking at comparisons in a general context certain trends 
begin to emerge which are worthy of thought and discussion. The following 
communities have been chosen as comparators to Belcarra.  

• Anmore 
• Bowen Island 
• Lions Bay 

 

This statistical data is published by the Ministry of Community, Sport and 
Cultural Development (Ministry) annually and is referred to as “Local 
Government Statistics”. The value of a representative house in Belcarra for 
2020, as published by the Ministry, was $1,355,482; however, this value is 
artificially low as it is impacted by water lot values on certain properties. The 
true value of a representative home in Belcarra for 2020 is $1,987,068 based 
on negating the impact of the water lots. This updated value and the 
associated tax impact of this value has been used in the tax comparisons 
shown in these benchmark comparisons.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



 

 26 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 

BC Local Government Statistics - 2019 Year-End 
 

 



 

 27 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 



 

 28 
 

 
BC Local Government Statistics - 2020 with house value/taxes in Belcarra increased based on 
impact of water lots 
 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   
Date: March 22, 2021   
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
 
Subject: 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That “2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies” report dated March 22, 2021, from the 
financial consultant, be received for information. 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to seek Council direction in regards to any changes that they would like to 
make in terms of the requirements of subsection 165 (3.1) of the Community Charter, whereby Council 
needs to set out their objectives and policies in the 2021 – 2025 financial plan bylaw, in relation to: the 
proportionate revenue from the various funding sources, the distribution of property taxes and the use of 
permissive tax exemptions.   
  
 
Background: 
Pursuant to subsection 165 (3.1) of the Community Charter the Village’s financial plan bylaw needs to set 
out Council’s objectives and policies as follows: 

 
Financial plan 
“165 (3.1) The financial plan must set out the objectives and policies of the municipality for the 

planning period in relation to the following: 
(a) for each of the funding sources described in subsection (7), the proportion of total   

revenue that is proposed to come from that funding source; 
(b) the distribution of property value taxes among the property classes that may be 

subject to the taxes; 
(c) the use of permissive tax exemptions.” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies 
March 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.4  2020 03 22 Financial Plan objectives and policies report.docx 
 
 

 
Subsection (7) which is referenced in 165 (3.1) (a) above reads as follows: 

“(7) The proposed funding sources must set out separate amounts for each of the following as 
applicable: 

(a)  revenue from property value taxes; 
(b)  revenue from parcel taxes; 
(c)  revenue from fees; 
(d)  revenue from other sources; 
(e) proceeds from borrowing, other than borrowing under section 177 [revenue 

anticipation borrowing].” 
 

 
The previous objectives and policies set-out in the 2020 – 2024 financial plan bylaw are attached as 
Appendix “A” for reference purposes. Council direction is requested in terms of any changes that they 
would like to make to the stated objectives and policies for the proportionate revenue from the various 
funding sources, the distribution of property taxes and/or the use of permissive tax exemptions.   
 
 
Attachment: 
       Appendix “A” - 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Objectives and Policies   



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies 
March 22, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.4  2020 03 22 Financial Plan objectives and policies report.docx 
 
 

Appendix “A” – 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Objectives and Policies 

 



 
 

 
 

  
 

COUNCIL REPORT 
   
Date: March 22, 2021      File No. 7200-01 
 
From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant  
  
Subject: Monitored Fire Alarms 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated March 22, 2021, from the Financial Consultant, be received 
for information.  
Purpose: 
The purpose of this report is to provide background information in regard to the issue of monitored fire 
alarms in order to have an informed discussion.  
 
Background: 
At the September 28, 2020 Council meeting the following motions were passed based on a report from 
Councillor Drake (see attached Appendix “A” for copy of the report): 

“That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated September 28, 2020 be received for information; and  
  That further development of the concept be recommended.” 

The above referenced report outlines the merits of monitored fire alarms and provided two options for 
achieving the goal of having more residential monitored fire alarms within the Village of Belcarra, as 
follows: 

“Option 1: A Village wide contract – the Village would issue an RFP inviting suppliers to bid to 
provide the service to all homes in Belcarra and enter, as a village, into a single contract with one 
supplier to ensure coverage.  

Advantages: (close to) full coverage / control of service offering quality / potentially some discount 
for 250+ homes to be served  
Disadvantages: limited competition to serve all homes as some suppliers may not have the capacity / 
inconvenience for those who already have a service contract they are pleased with / coercive nature 
of a top down imposition / as suppliers have efficient billing systems the discount for a single payer 
may actually be limited.  

Option 2: Incentive approach – allow homeowners to contract with a supplier of their choice who 
meets an approved standard. Offer an annual credit at tax time for homeowners with a contract that 
meets that minimum standard.  

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5



 
 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Monitored Fire Alarms 
March 22, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.5 2020 03 22 Monitored Fire Alarms.docx 
 
 

Advantages: Homeowners opt in or out at their discretion / those with existing contracts are not 
inconvenienced / Applications received will provide an indication of the extent of monitored 
coverage meeting the minimum standard/ The credit amount can be scalable and thus adjusted 
annually based upon take up/ Administrative burden will be minimized. / suppliers may be willing to 
offer incentives given other services they would like to offer once core capacity is introduced.”  

The following points are brought forward for consideration and discussion purposes in regard to 
the issue of monitored fire alarms and the related options quoted above: 

• Option 1 - it is possible to negotiate preferred pricing for homeowners with a particular vendor or 
vendors and to provide those homeowners with the option of choosing one of the preferred vendors 
or not. If the Village was to enter into a contract with a particular vendor after an RFP or negotiated 
process and then provide this avenue to homeowners, the Village may be taking on liability from a 
legal perspective.  
 

• Option 2 - providing rebates or credits to particular homeowners would mean that any expenses 
incurred by the Village for such a program would result in a property tax increase for all property 
owners. In other words, all expenses for such a program including rebates would result in a 
property tax increase for all homeowners including those that received the rebate. Thus, those that 
received the rebate would be in part paying for their own rebates in the form of increased taxes.   
 
It would be administratively cumbersome and costly to monitor and provide credits or rebates 
based on established criteria that would have to be evaluated on an annual or more frequent basis 
including partial year credits. For example, there would be a problem in determining whether the 
alarm monitoring was discontinued for any part of a year or what to do in the case of partial months 
of service in any year (if partial rebates were provided).   
 
If such as program were to proceed one could offer a dollar rebate that could be applied to taxes, 
not a tax credit as tax rates are established by bylaw and are applied consistently to all property 
owners.  
 

• The B.C. Building Code (section 3.2.4.7) and local municipal bylaws require fire alarm monitoring 
in buildings that: 

o Are designated as assembly with an occupant load over 300 
o Have an automatic sprinkler system, or 
o Have a two-stage fire alarm system. 

 
• There are typically local government bylaw requirements to have multi-family and commercial to 

have ULC (Underwriters Laboratories of Canada) standard fire alarm monitoring systems in place, 
not single family residential. For example, the City of North Vancouver’s Bylaw 8090 requires 
multi-unit residential buildings to have compliant fire alarm systems installed, including fire 
monitoring by a ULC-certified monitoring station. 
 

• One has to have compatibility with the alarm monitoring panel/systems and the fire alarms, 
therefore the alarm monitoring companies install both. The alarms and panel can be hardwired or 
connected wirelessly (some homes cannot be hardwired). The alarm panel has a backup battery in 
place should power be interrupted and all of the wireless devices also have batteries. Monitored 

https://www.vanfire.com/uploads/images/file_view/byLaw8090.pdf


 
 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   
Council Report: Monitored Fire Alarms 
March 22, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.5 2020 03 22 Monitored Fire Alarms.docx 
 
 

systems should have back-up modes of communication in place (landline phone and / or cellular or 
Internet). The systems are also typically tied into security systems to monitor burglars, etc. 
 

• With monitored fire alarm systems there can be false alarms that occur which would mean false 
call outs and related costs for fire departments Some local governments charge a fee for false 
alarms based on every occurrence or based on exceeding x number of occurrences.  
 

• Golden Ears Alarms quote – Basic $580 for alarms and monitoring panel + $25 per month for        
3 years. $195 added for wireless + $15 extra for monitoring per month. Companies usually require 
3-year contracts and some are going to 5-year contracts. Upfront costs are sometimes reduced and 
the monthly charges increased. This company indicated that the alarm monitoring is not usually 
done for fire alarms only but for total security systems.   
 

• There is usually a 10-25% decrease in insurance rates for having a monitoring system in place; 
however, if the property owner is at the maximum discount of 40% they would not receive an 
additional discount for their monitoring system. 
 

• If Council chooses to pursue a particular option it would be important to determine the actual cost 
of such a program including any cash outlays and associated administrative costs before instituting 
the program so that the cost/benefit can be considered as part of the decision-making process.   

 
Key Questions 

• Can the overall objective be achieved in other ways including advertising, education, home visits 
by fire personnel, etc.?  
 

• Is the private sector (the alarm companies and private fire safety companies) in the best position to 
promote and educate homeowners on their services including fire alarms and related monitoring?   
 

 
Attachment 1: Councillor Drake, Council Report, Monitored Fire Alarms, September 28, 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
COUNCIL MEMBER REPORT 

    
Date: September 28, 2020  
 
From: Councillor Drake 
 
Subject: Monitored Fire Alarms 
 
  
Recommendation 

That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated September 28, 2020 be received for information; and  
That further development of the concept be recommended. 

Background 

A proposal to ensure widespread use of monitored Smoke and Fire alarms in Belcarra in order to reduce 
the risk of death or injury as well as the spread of fires. 

Per The National Fire Protection Association (FSNA) *1 Educational material:  

“While today’s fire departments do much more than fight fires, home structure fires are still a serious 
problem. Home fires still cause the majority of all civilian fire deaths and civilian injuries.   

Smoke alarms were present in three-quarters (74%) of reported home fires in 2012-2016.  Yet almost 
three out of five home fire deaths in 2012-2016 were caused by fires in properties with no smoke alarms 
(40%) or smoke alarms that failed to operate (17%). The risk of dying in reported home structure fires is 
54% lower in homes with working smoke alarms than in homes with no alarms or homes with none that 
worked.  

When smoke alarms were present in reported fires considered large enough to activate them, they 
operated 88% of the time.   

People who were fatally injured in home fires with working smoke alarms were more likely to have been 
in the area of origin, involved in the ignition, to have fought the fire themselves, to have a disability or to 
have been at least 75 years old. Thus the response to alarms that work is also a contributing factor to 
deaths or injury. A knowledgeable homeowner with functioning alarms is thus likely to reduce the risk of 
death by more than the 54% cited above.”  

Monitored Fire & Smoke alarms provide: 

Significantly reduced risk of death or injury by ensuring prompt and reliable notification of SVFD of 
alarms whether the homeowner is present or the home is empty. With the number of Belcarra residents 
who travel and the distance we are from shopping and entertainment venues, village homes are often 
empty and thus at an avoidable risk that a small localized fire will spread undetected until it is so large its 
effect is noted by others. By this time the chance of containment to the point of origin is much reduced 
and thus the risk of spread to other homes or our forests significantly increased.  

Many of SVFD’s most damaging fires did not lead to prompt callouts as no one was home when the fire 
began and the effect was not noted and reported until the fire was well advanced.  

Chief Sharpe has provided a number of examples of fires SVFD has fought in recent years. His comments 
are attached at the end of this report. 

 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
Attachment 1



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Monitored Fire Alarms 
September 28, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.5 Attachment 1 - 2020 09 28 Councillor Drake - Report to 
Council - Monitored Fire Alarms.docx 

Modern monitored alarms result in prompt callouts and a much greater chance that:  
• everyone is evacuated safely (modern alarms intercommunicate and all are triggered when one is 

triggered thus helping to ensure no one on site misses the warning) 
• firefighters arrive sooner and encounter a less advanced and dangerous scenario  
• fire suppressants (water or chemical) used by firefighters can be applied in smaller amounts to a 

less advanced fire 
• the fire will be less likely to engulf the entire home  
• reduced risk that adjacent homes and forest interface will be put at risk and require firefighters’ 

attention.  
• community benefits - your neighbours’ homes are less likely to put your family and home at risk 

and your home is less likely to endanger your neighbours’ families and homes.    

While most homeowners (over 96% in the US) now have alarms of some sort in their home this does not 
mean they are current technology; are properly maintained or will be reliably activated by smoke or 
flames.  There is a good deal of evidence that unmonitored (and particularly battery powered) alarm 
systems can be unreliable: 

A follow-up study of lithium battery-powered alarms installed 1998-2001 in five states investigated 
whether these alarms were present and operational eight to ten years later.    

At least one of the installed alarms was still present and functional in only 38% of the homes 
visited.   Slightly more than one-third (37%) of the installed alarms were missing, one third (33%) were 
present and operational, and slightly less than one third (30%) were present but not operational. “*2  

A second example:  

“From December 2011 through October 2012, members of the Dallas Fire Rescue Department conducted 
follow up home visits to homes in which smoke alarms with lithium batteries had been installed from 
2001 to 2010 to monitor how these smoke alarms functioned over time. 

• In the second year 88% of the smoke alarms were present and 84% were working  
• In the fourth year 75% were present and 55% were working  
• In the six-year 71% or present and 27% were working  
• In the eighth year 63% were installed and 20% were working  
• In the tenth year 55% were installed and 22% were still working “ 

  
Monitored and tested alarm systems are much more likely to be functional when lives are on the line. This 
is reinforced by findings on the reasons for battery-only alarm failures (2012-2016): 

Missing or disconnected battery - 51% 
Dead or discharged battery - 42%  
(*2 - page 7)  

Reliable alarm systems can also serve to prevent fires from developing.  FPNA reports that 22% of 
homeowners whose alarms sounded in the past year reported that it warned of “something that could have 
become a fire “   

As noted above the death rate per 1000 reported fires in alarmed homes is less than half that of homes 
without alarms or homes with an alarm that doesn’t work (5.7 deaths /1000 fires vrs 12.3 deaths /1000 
fires)   

Among reported fires hardwired smoke alarms operated 94% of the time while battery powered alarms 
operated 81% of the time (*2 - page 5).  Again, monitored systems with modern technology will provide 
for testing that should significantly reduce these risks.  

 

 



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Monitored Fire Alarms 
September 28, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.5 Attachment 1 - 2020 09 28 Councillor Drake - Report to 
Council - Monitored Fire Alarms.docx 

PROPOSAL:   In addition to our efforts to secure provincial authority to require sprinkler systems in new 
homes Belcarra should also act to ensure a very high number of our homes are protected by 
monitored fire alarm systems. As noted above each monitored home protects not just its occupants but 
also its neighbours. Earlier dispatch will assist our SVFD volunteers to protect lives and property.   
  
Possible approaches: 

Option 1:  A Village wide contract – the Village would issue an RFP inviting suppliers to bid to provide 
the service to all homes in Belcarra and enter, as a village, into a single contract with one supplier to 
ensure coverage.  

Advantages: (close to) full coverage / control of service offering quality / potentially some discount for 
250+ homes to be served   

Disadvantages : limited competition to serve all homes as some suppliers may not have the capacity / 
inconvenience for those who already have a service contract they are pleased with / coercive nature of a 
top down imposition / as suppliers have efficient billing systems the discount for a single payer may 
actually be limited.  

Option 2:  Incentive approach - allow homeowners to contract with a supplier of their choice who meets 
an approved standard.   Offer an annual credit at tax time for homeowners with a contract that meets that 
minimum standard.   

Advantages: Homeowners opt in or out at their discretion / those with existing contracts are not 
inconvenienced / Applications received will provide an indication of the extent of monitored coverage 
meeting the minimum standard/  
The credit amount can be scalable and thus adjusted annually based upon take up/  
Administrative burden will be minimized. / suppliers may be willing to offer incentives given other 
services they would like to offer once core capacity is introduced.   

Footnotes:   

A - References   

*1 NFPA - The National Fire Protection Association is an international nonprofit organization devoted 
to eliminating death, injury, property and economic loss due to fire, electrical and related hazards. In 
2018, the NFPA claims to have 50,000 members and 9,000 volunteers working with the organization 
through its 250 technical committees. 

 *2 NFPA’s “Smoke Alarms in U.S. Home Fires" Author: Marty Ahrens Issued: January 2019 

  
B  - Summary fire information prepared by SVFD Chief Sharpe : 

• “Turtle Head fires. Two houses on Turtlehead Road were total loses. Both houses only had local 
smoke detectors. It is unknown if any of them were functional at the time of the fire. No one was 
home at either house when the fire started. The fire definitely started at 135 Turtlehead and 
spread to the second house. The occupants had left 135 Turtlehead approximately 1 hour before 
the fire was reported. A neighbour had stated that they had smelled something burning earlier in 
the day but assumed it was coming from someone burning garbage in their fireplace. All of the 
anecdotal evidence suggested that the cause of the fire was electrical. Due to the construction 
materials of both houses the fire spread was rapid and intense. An early warning may have 
prevented the fire from spreading from the building of origin. 

• Elementary Rd house fire. The owners of this house were out of the country at the time that the 
fire started. The fire was first reported at 4:30am by a neighbor who was awoken by the sound of 
breaking glass. At this time the fire had already spread from the garage into the attic space and up 
a side wall into the second floor. This house had local smoke detectors that were working. Had 



Councillor Drake 
Council Report: Monitored Fire Alarms 
September 28, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\5.5 Attachment 1 - 2020 09 28 Councillor Drake - Report to 
Council - Monitored Fire Alarms.docx 

they had a monitored alarm the fire may have been stopped before it spread from the garage. 
Other than some personal items this fire was a total loss. 

• Two mobile home fires In Anmore. Both at the same residence several months apart. The first 
time there was significant damage but was repairable. The second time it was a total loss. No 
monitored alarm and the owner was not home when both fires started. Neighbours called it in. 

• Birchwynd Dr. house fire. This was a total loss house fire that started in the kitchen at 
11:00am on a weekday. By the time the neighbours noticed it, the fire had spread to the top floor. 
The homeowner had only left about an hour before the fire was called in. The cause was 
determined to be an in-ceiling lighting fixture. 

• Robson Rd garage fire. A small fire that happened during the day on a weekend. Luckily a 
neighbour saw smoke coming from the garage and notified the owner. The owner extinguished 
the fire before it became out of control. There was minor damage to the interior of the garage but 
a lot of smoke damage. The cause was oily rags from a staining project. 

• Watson Rd/ Marine Ave. A vacant home that was being used as an Air BnB suffered significant 
fire damage to one room and the entire home suffered from smoke damage. Luckily a very alert 
and determined neighbour found the fire and was able to call 911 in a timely manner. We were 
able to respond and put the fire out before it progressed much further. Every door inside the house 
was open allowing smoke to get into every room. The cause was an electrical in floor heater. 

• Main Ave garage fire. A small fire in a plastic garbage can produced a large volume of black 
toxic smoke that coated everything in the garage. The fire occurred late at night but the home 
owner was still awake ad could smell something burning and went out to investigate. 

• Sugar Mountain Way in Anmore. A large fire in an attached garage caused significant damage to 
the house. The homeowner was home at the time and sleeping. The smoke migrated from the 
garage into the main part of the house and set off the local smoke detector. There was no 
detection in the garage. The garage had been converted into a home office. The cause was a 
portable space heater. 

• Mobile Home in Anmore. A plastic jar of peanut butter was left on top of the stove. The jar 
melted and caught on fire. This happened on a weekday in the morning not long after the 
residents left for work. A neighbour saw black smoke coming from a kitchen window and called 
911. All interior doors were left open causing severe smoke damage to all of the contents. The cat 
and dog were both pressed up to an open window when we arrived searching for fresh air. 

• You have referenced the Turtle Head fires and Elementary Road fire. Both of these were 
determined to be electrical in nature but no definitive cause could be found due to the amount of 
damage. 

In all of these cases there was not a monitored alarm system. Had there been I believe that the outcomes 
for these incidents would have been much better.” 

tel:911


 

       
 

 
A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  

Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors 
 
WHEREAS the Municipal Council may, by bylaw, provide for the payment from annual 
general revenue, an indemnity to the Mayor and to each Councillor for the discharge of 
their duties of office;  
 
NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Village of Belcarra in open meeting 
assembled enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Village of Belcarra Council 
Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021". 

2. The indemnity for the Mayor from April 1, 2021, up to and including        
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $1,857.69 monthly.  

3. The indemnity for each Councillor from April 1, 2021, up to and including 
December 31, 2021, shall be the gross sum of $928.85 monthly.  

4. The indemnities provided for in Section 2 and 3 above shall be paid by the Chief 
Administrative Officer, save and except for the provisions of Section 5 hereof. 

5. In the event of any member of Council being absent from three consecutive 
regular Council meetings, the indemnity that would otherwise be due to that 
member shall not be paid to that member.  This provision may be waived by a 
unanimous vote in favour thereof by the remaining members of Council. 

6. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed, and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

7. This bylaw shall take force and come into effect as of April 1, 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
Council Indemnity  

Bylaw No. 579, 2021 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2021\2021 03 22\7.1 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council 
Indemnity Bylaw.docx 
 

2 
 

8. The “Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 544, 2020” is hereby 
repealed. 

  
 
READ A FIRST TIME on February 22, 2021 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on February 22, 2021 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on March 8, 2021 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
 
   
Jamie Ross 
Mayor 

 Paula Richardson 
Acting Corporate Officer 

 
 
 
This is a certified a true copy of 
Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021 
 

 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5









prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.8





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.9





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.10











prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.11



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.12





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.13



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.14



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.15




	5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 Draft           2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update
	Recommendation:
	5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding  Monitored Fire Alarms
	Recommendation:
	3.1 2021 03 08 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.pdf
	K. Bjorgaard provided a presentation and outlined the Draft 2021 –  2025 Draft  Financial Plan report as follows:
	 Impact of Strategic Planning
	 General Operating Fund
	 Water Operating Fund
	 Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	 Capital Plan
	 Reserve & Surplus
	 Community Grants
	 Property Tax & User Fees for Water & WARD
	 Comparative Benchmarks
	Considerable discussion ensued with regard to various aspects of the report. Council  asked  pertinent questions.
	K. Bjorgaard advised that the Financial Plan will be brought forward to the Regular  Council meeting scheduled for March 22, 2021.
	CARRIED
	6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES
	6.1 International Women’s Day
	Mayor Ross acknowledged International Women’s Day. He recognized the first  Belcarra Mayor Verna Barrett, Councillor Clark and Councillor Wilder and the  accomplishments and leadership they have provided.  He noted that many female  Belcarra resident...
	Mayor Ross recognized the work done by Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer,  with Fraser Health during the COVID-19 Pandemic.
	He expressed his appreciation to the Women of Belcarra for their contributions to the  community.
	Pay Parking at the Belcarra Park Picnic Area & White Pine Beach
	Councillor Clark, who is a member of the Metro Vancouver Parks Committee, provided  an overview on the upcoming Metro Parks news announcement regarding pay parking  at Belcarra Regional Park Picnic Area and White Pine Beach. Pay parking is scheduled ...
	It is anticipated that park users will be encouraged to use transit and carpool to ease  parking issues and that this is a traffic management tool being implemented.
	It was noted that a meeting is taking place with staff from Metro Vancouver Parks, Port  Moody and Belcarra to discuss parking matters that impact the three areas.
	7. BYLAWS
	No items.
	Certified Correct:

	5.1 Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment UBCM Housing Needs Report .pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:  1850-20-28
	Date: March 22, 2021
	Subject: Province of British Columbia Housing Needs Assessment —
	UBCM Housing Needs Report
	5.1 Village of Belcarra HNA Report Work Outline.pdf
	Council REPORT HNA Tri Village approval
	Copy of Vernon #2-3.pdf
	HNA overview_Belcarra


	5.2 2021 03 22 STRA - Mar 2021 Staff Report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	File:  6700-03
	Date: March 22, 2021
	From: Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer
	& Dan Watson, Pooni Group, Planning Consultants
	5.2 Attachment 1 Policy 210 - Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation Policy.pdf
	Title: Short Term Rental Accommodation and Bed & Breakfast Accommodation

	5.2 Attachment 2 Bylaw 580, 2021 Zoning Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 510, 2018, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to update and introduce definitions related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) in the Zoning Bylaw.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018” be amended:
	a) By replacing the following text from Section 104 – Definitions:
	b) With the following text:
	c) Adding the following text to Section 104 – Definitions:
	d) By replacing the following text from Section 200 - General Regulations:
	e) With the following text:
	f) Add the following to Section 210 Home Based Business Use (General Regulations):
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Public Hearing held on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Zoning Bylaw No. 510, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 580, 2021

	5.2 Attachment 3 Bylaw 581, 2021 Fees and Charges Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 517, 2018, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to introduce fees related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B) and advertising on the Village of Belcarra webpage.
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018” be amended:
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Fees and Charges Bylaw No. 517, 2018 Amendment Bylaw No. 581, 2021

	5.2 Attachment 4 Bylaw 582, 2021 Business Licence Bylaw Amendment Bylaw No. 227, 1995, STRA.pdf
	An amendment bylaw to establish fines for offences related to Short Term Rental Accommodation (STRA) and Bed & Breakfast (B&B).
	WHEREAS the Community Charter enables a local government to amend its bylaws from time to time;
	NOW THEREFORE the Village of Belcarra Council enacts as follows:
	2. That the “Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995” be amended:
	Read a First Time on
	Read a Second Time on
	Read a Third Time on
	ADOPTED by Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Business Licence Bylaw No. 227, 1995 Amendment Bylaw No. 582, 2021


	5.3 2021-03-22 Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan Update report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 22, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update
	Recommendations
	The purpose of this report is to provide further information in regards to the Village of Belcarra Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan which was introduced on March 8, 2021, and to seek Council direction in terms of a moving forward with a Draft Financia...
	Background
	At the March 8, 2021 Council meeting Council requested further information in regards to some of the 2021 budget estimates. Attached labeled Appendices “A” (3 pages), “B” (1 page) and “C” (1 page) provide explanations for the major 2021 – 2020 budget ...
	Of note are two budget changes that have occurred since the initial budget presentation on March 8th, as follows:
	 Provision for Housing Needs Assessment Study and related grant ($15,000 project expense funded entirely from grant) (see Appendix “E” page 3) has been provided for in 2021; and
	 Inclusion of $3,800 for road sweeping costs in each year with 70% being budgeted in MRN, and thus recoverable from TransLink funding, and 30% in the non-MRN roads budget.
	Report
	Other Budget Items for Discussion Including Grant Requests (Appendix “D”)
	The items shown in attached Appendix “D” were previously presented for budget discussion and are now reattached for Council’s direction in terms of which items should be supported in regards to budget funding.
	Water Debt
	Information was also requested in regards to the first opportunity for paying out the water debt. The first 10-year payout opportunity on the Village water debt occurs in October of 2022 and every 5 years thereafter (again in 2027 for example). The pa...
	Draft 2021-2025 Financial Plan (Appendix “E” which includes pages 1 – 28) (summary is on page 2)
	Council direction is requested in terms of any further budget information required and / or the provisional financial plan that should be brought forward to the public for consultation purposes. The tax and user rate increases currently built into the...
	Taxes and User Rates on Average Value Home
	The overall increase in property taxes, user rates and the parcel tax for an average value home in Belcarra, based on various scenarios, is shown below.
	Public Consultation, Budget Amendments & Timeframe for Bylaws
	The intent is to bring forward the latest version of the financial plan document as shown in Appendix “E” (pages 1- 28), or as amended by Council, for public comment/consultation at the April 12th, 2021 regular meeting of Council. If Council would lik...
	As noted previously the Village needs to adopt a 5-year 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan bylaw and a related Tax Rates bylaw by May 10, 2021. After March 22, 2021 there are only three (3) regular Council meetings scheduled prior to the May 15th legislative ...
	Summary
	We respectfully request Council’s direction in terms of the Village’s Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan (Appendix “E” pages 1 – 28) in terms of a budget / plan which can be brought forward for public consultation purposes and so that the legislative ti...
	Attachments:
	Appendix “A” – General Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results
	Appendix “B” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results
	Appendix “C” – Water Operating Fund Explanation of 2021 – 2020 Variances & 2020 Actual Results
	Appendix "D" – 2021 Budget Items Received for Discussion Purposes
	Appendix “E” – Draft 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan (pages 1 – 28)
	5.3 Attachment Appendix E - 2021 Draft budget document updated.pdf
	Summary
	Introduction & Overview
	General Operating Fund
	Water Operating Fund
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund
	Capital Plan
	Reserves & Surpluses
	Property Taxes & User Fees

	General Operating Fund Details
	Water Fund Debt
	Waste & Recycle Depot (WARD) Operating Fund Details
	Projected Reserve & Surplus Balances
	Comparative Benchmarks


	5.4  2020 03 22 Financial Plan objectives and policies report.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 22, 2021
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Bylaw Objectives and Policies
	Recommendation:
	Purpose:
	Background:
	The previous objectives and policies set-out in the 2020 – 2024 financial plan bylaw are attached as Appendix “A” for reference purposes. Council direction is requested in terms of any changes that they would like to make to the stated objectives and ...
	Attachment:
	Appendix “A” - 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Objectives and Policies
	Appendix “A” - 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Objectives and Policies
	Appendix “A” – 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Objectives and Policies

	5.5 2020 03 22 Monitored Fire Alarms.pdf
	COUNCIL REPORT
	Date: March 22, 2021      File No. 7200-01
	From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant
	Subject: Monitored Fire Alarms
	Recommendation:
	That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated March 22, 2021, from the Financial Consultant, be received for information.
	Purpose:
	The purpose of this report is to provide background information in regard to the issue of monitored fire alarms in order to have an informed discussion.
	Background:
	At the September 28, 2020 Council meeting the following motions were passed based on a report from Councillor Drake (see attached Appendix “A” for copy of the report):
	“That the Monitored Fire Alarms report dated September 28, 2020 be received for information; and
	That further development of the concept be recommended.”
	The above referenced report outlines the merits of monitored fire alarms and provided two options for achieving the goal of having more residential monitored fire alarms within the Village of Belcarra, as follows:
	“Option 1: A Village wide contract – the Village would issue an RFP inviting suppliers to bid to provide the service to all homes in Belcarra and enter, as a village, into a single contract with one supplier to ensure coverage.
	Advantages: (close to) full coverage / control of service offering quality / potentially some discount for 250+ homes to be served
	Disadvantages: limited competition to serve all homes as some suppliers may not have the capacity / inconvenience for those who already have a service contract they are pleased with / coercive nature of a top down imposition / as suppliers have effici...
	Option 2: Incentive approach – allow homeowners to contract with a supplier of their choice who meets an approved standard. Offer an annual credit at tax time for homeowners with a contract that meets that minimum standard.
	Advantages: Homeowners opt in or out at their discretion / those with existing contracts are not inconvenienced / Applications received will provide an indication of the extent of monitored coverage meeting the minimum standard/ The credit amount can ...
	The following points are brought forward for consideration and discussion purposes in regard to the issue of monitored fire alarms and the related options quoted above:
	 Option 1 - it is possible to negotiate preferred pricing for homeowners with a particular vendor or vendors and to provide those homeowners with the option of choosing one of the preferred vendors or not. If the Village was to enter into a contract ...
	 Option 2 - providing rebates or credits to particular homeowners would mean that any expenses incurred by the Village for such a program would result in a property tax increase for all property owners. In other words, all expenses for such a program...
	It would be administratively cumbersome and costly to monitor and provide credits or rebates based on established criteria that would have to be evaluated on an annual or more frequent basis including partial year credits. For example, there would be ...
	If such as program were to proceed one could offer a dollar rebate that could be applied to taxes, not a tax credit as tax rates are established by bylaw and are applied consistently to all property owners.
	 The B.C. Building Code (section 3.2.4.7) and local municipal bylaws require fire alarm monitoring in buildings that:
	o Are designated as assembly with an occupant load over 300
	o Have an automatic sprinkler system, or
	o Have a two-stage fire alarm system.
	 There are typically local government bylaw requirements to have multi-family and commercial to have ULC (Underwriters Laboratories of Canada) standard fire alarm monitoring systems in place, not single family residential. For example, the City of No...
	 One has to have compatibility with the alarm monitoring panel/systems and the fire alarms, therefore the alarm monitoring companies install both. The alarms and panel can be hardwired or connected wirelessly (some homes cannot be hardwired). The ala...
	 With monitored fire alarm systems there can be false alarms that occur which would mean false call outs and related costs for fire departments Some local governments charge a fee for false alarms based on every occurrence or based on exceeding x num...
	 Golden Ears Alarms quote – Basic $580 for alarms and monitoring panel + $25 per month for        3 years. $195 added for wireless + $15 extra for monitoring per month. Companies usually require 3-year contracts and some are going to 5-year contracts...
	 There is usually a 10-25% decrease in insurance rates for having a monitoring system in place; however, if the property owner is at the maximum discount of 40% they would not receive an additional discount for their monitoring system.
	 If Council chooses to pursue a particular option it would be important to determine the actual cost of such a program including any cash outlays and associated administrative costs before instituting the program so that the cost/benefit can be consi...
	Key Questions
	 Can the overall objective be achieved in other ways including advertising, education, home visits by fire personnel, etc.?
	 Is the private sector (the alarm companies and private fire safety companies) in the best position to promote and educate homeowners on their services including fire alarms and related monitoring?
	Attachment 1: Councillor Drake, Council Report, Monitored Fire Alarms, September 28, 2020
	5.5 Attachment 1 - 2020 09 28 Councillor Drake - Report to Council - Monitored Fire Alarms.pdf
	COUNCIL MEMBER REPORT
	Date: September 28, 2020
	From: Councillor Drake
	Subject: Monitored Fire Alarms
	In all of these cases there was not a monitored alarm system. Had there been I believe that the outcomes for these incidents would have been much better.”


	7.1 Bylaw 579, 2021 Council Indemnity Bylaw.pdf
	A bylaw to provide for the payment of an indemnity to  Village of Belcarra Mayor and Councillors
	READ A FIRST TIME on February 22, 2021
	READ A SECOND TIME on February 22, 2021
	READ A THIRD TIME on March 8, 2021
	ADOPTED by the Council on
	This is a certified a true copy of Village of Belcarra Council Indemnity Bylaw No. 579, 2021

	2.1 2021 03 25 Reconvened from March 22, 2021 - Regular Council Agenda.pdf
	5.3 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 Draft           2021 – 2025 Financial Plan Update
	Recommendation:
	5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated March 22, 2021 regarding  Monitored Fire Alarms
	Recommendation:




